# Kingsgate Park Exercise Equipment

23 April 2019

## Table of Contents

Title		Page
A10	PROJECT PARTICULARS	3
A11	TENDER AND CONTRACT DOCUMENTS	3
A12	THE SITE/ EXISTING BUILDINGS	3
A13	DESCRIPTION OF THE WORK	4
A20	JCT MINOR WORK BUILDING CONTRACT (MW)	4
A30	TENDERING/ SUBLETTING/ SUPPLY	6
A31	PROVISION, CONTENT AND USE OF DOCUMENTS	7
A32	MANAGEMENT OF THE WORKS	8
A33	QUALITY STANDARDS/ CONTROL	9
A34	SECURITY/ SAFETY/ PROTECTION	11
A37	OPERATION/ MAINTENANCE OF THE FINISHED WORKS	13

### A10 PROJECT PARTICULARS

- 110 THE PROJECT
  - Name: Kingsgate Park Exercise Equipment.
  - Nature: Supply and installation of outdoor exercise equipment with associated paving and fencing.
  - Location: Kingsgate Park Elmwood Yate BS37 4EP.
  - Length of contract: 4 weeks.
- 120 EMPLOYER (CLIENT)
  - Name: Yate Town Council.
  - Address: Poole Court Poole Court Drive Yate Bristol BS37 5PP.
  - Contact: Lucy Shilcock.
  - Telephone: 01454 8666506.
  - E-mail: lshilcock@yatetowncouncil.gov.uk.

### 140 ARCHITECT/ CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR

- Name: South Gloucestershire Council.
- Address: Environment and Community Services Community Spaces Team PO Box 1954 Bristol BS37 0DD.
- Contact: Alison Brown.Telephone: 01454 894911.
- E-mail: alison.brown@southglos.gov.uk.

### A11 TENDER AND CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

- 110 TENDER DRAWINGS
  - The tender drawings are: South Gloucestershire Council's drawing number LA/255/01.
- 120 CONTRACT DRAWINGS
  - The Contract Drawings: The same as the tender drawings.

### 160 PRECONSTRUCTION INFORMATION

• Format: The Preconstruction information is described in these preliminaries in Section A34. It refers to information given elsewhere in the preliminaries and other tender documents.

### A12 THE SITE/ EXISTING BUILDINGS

### 110 THE SITE

- Description: Kingsgate Park is a public park that is gated and locked overnight.
- 140 EXISTING UTILITIES AND SERVICES
  - Drawings: (Information shown is indicative only): to be made available.
  - Other information: Service search information will be provided prior to the start of the contract.
- 200 ACCESS TO THE SITE
  - Description: Via Elmwood, off Sundridge Park.
  - Limitations: The park is locked overnight. Access arrangements to be agreed with the Town Council. Access is limited to the pedestrian paths around the site and to be agreed with the Town Council.

### 210 PARKING

- Restrictions on parking of the Contractor's and employees' vehicles: to be agreed with the Town Coucnil.
- 220 USE OF THE SITE
  - General: Do not use the site for any purpose other than carrying out the Works.
  - Limitations: Site compound arrangements to be agreed with the Town Council.

#### 230 SURROUNDING LAND/ BUILDING USES

General: Adjacent or nearby uses or activities are as follows:
 The park will remain open to the public throughout the installation period.

### 240A HEALTH AND SAFETY HAZARDS

- General: The nature and condition of the site/ building cannot be fully and certainly ascertained before it is opened up. The contractor shall provide a method statement describing the procedures for ensuring the safety of park users throughout the installation programme. This should include allowance for using banskmen when manoeuvering vehichles and equipment around the site. The contractor should be aware that the location for the new equipment is adjacent to a busy childrens' play area .
- Information: The accuracy and sufficiency of this information is not guaranteed. Ascertain if any additional information is required to ensure the safety of all persons and the Works
- Site staff: Draw to the attention of all personnel working on the site the nature of any possible contamination and the need to take appropriate precautionary measures.

### 250 SITE VISIT

- Assessment: Ascertain the nature of the site, access thereto and all local conditions and restrictions likely to affect the execution of the Works.
- Arrangements for visit: The site is open to the public during daylight hours.

### A13 DESCRIPTION OF THE WORK

- 120 THE WORKS
  - Description: Supply and installation of outdoor exercise equipment including associated paving, fencing and accessories.

### A20 JCT MINOR WORK BUILDING CONTRACT (MW)

JCT MINOR WORKS BUILDING CONTRACT

- The Contract: JCT Minor Works Building Contract 2016 Edition.
- Requirement: Allow for the obligations, liabilities and services described.

### THE RECITALS

First - THE WORKS AND THE CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR

- The work comprises: Supply and installation of outdoor exercise equipment, paving and fencing.
- Architect/ Contract Administrator: See clause A10/140.

Second - CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

 Contract drawings: As listed in clause A11/120.
 Contract documents: The following have been prepared which show and describe the work to be done Drawing, Specification and Design Brief.

Third - PRICED DOCUMENTS

• Documents to be priced or provided by the Contractor: Work schedules.

### ARTICLES

3 - ARCHITECT/ CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR

• Architect/ Contract Administrator: See clause A10/140.

4 and 5 - PRINCIPAL DESIGNER/ PRINCIPAL CONTRACTOR

• Articles 4 and 5 will be deleted

#### CONTRACT PARTICULARS

Fourth Recital and Schedule 2 - BASE DATE

• Base date: 1 April 2019.

Fourth Recital and clause 4.2 - CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY SCHEME (CIS) Employer at the Base Date is not a 'contractor' for the purposes of the CIS.

Fifth Recital - CDM REGULATIONS

• The project is not notifiable.

Article 7 - ARBITRATION

• Article 7 and Schedule 1 apply.

Clause 2.2 - COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION Works commencement date: No later than 8 weeks from the date for receipt of Tenders.

• Date for Completion: 4 weeks after commencement..

**Clause 2.10 - RECTIFICATION PERIOD** 

• Period: Three months from the date of practical completion.

Clause 4.8.1 - SUPPLY OF DOCUMENTATION FOR COMPUTATION OF AMOUNT TO BE FINALLY CERTIFIED

• Period: Three months from the date of practical completion.

Clause 5.3 - CONTRACTOR'S PUBLIC LIABILITY INSURANCE - INJURY TO PERSONS OR PROPERTY

- The required level of cover for any one occurrence or series of occurrences arising out of one event:
  - Not less than: £10 million.

Clauses 5.4A, 5.4B and 5.4C - INSURANCE OF THE WORKS, ETC. - ALTERNATIVE PROVISIONS

- Clause 5.4A applies.
- Where clause 5.4A or 5.4B applies, percentage to cover professional fees: 15 per cent.
- Where clause 5.4C applies, insurance arrangements details of the required policy or policies: n/a.

Schedule 1 paragraph 2.1 - ARBITRATION

 Appointor of Arbitrator (and of any replacement): President or a Vice president of the: The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.

### THE CONDITIONS

EXECUTION

• The Contract: Will be executed under hand.

### A30 TENDERING/ SUBLETTING/ SUPPLY

### MAIN CONTRACT TENDERING

- 110 SCOPE
  - General: These conditions are supplementary to those stated in the Invitation to Tender and on the form of tender.
- 160 EXCLUSIONS
  - Inability to tender: Immediately inform if any parts of the work as defined in the tender documents cannot be tendered.
  - Relevant parts of the work: Define those parts, stating reasons for the inability to tender.
- 170 ACCEPTANCE OF TENDER
  - Acceptance: No guarantee is offered that any tender will be recommended for acceptance or be accepted, or that reasons for non acceptance will be given.
  - Costs: No liability is accepted for any cost incurred in the preparation of any tender.
- 190 PERIOD OF VALIDITY
  - Period: After submission or lodgement, keep tender open for consideration (unless previously withdrawn) for not less than 6 months.
  - Date for possession/ commencement: See section A20.

### PRICING/ SUBMISSION OF DOCUMENTS

### 250 PRICED DOCUMENTS

- Alterations: Do not alter or qualify the priced documents without written consent. Tenders containing unauthorised alterations or qualifications may be rejected.
- Measurements: Where not stated, ascertain from the drawings.
- Deemed included: Costs relating to items, which are not priced, will be deemed to have been included elsewhere in the tender.
- Submit: With tender.

### 310 TENDER

 General: Tenders must include for all work shown or described in the tender documents as a whole or clearly apparent as being necessary for the complete and proper execution of the Works.

### 550 HEALTH AND SAFETY INFORMATION

- Content: Describe the organization and resources to safeguard the health and safety of operatives, including those of subcontractors, and of any person whom the Works may affect.
- Include:
  - A copy of the health and safety policy document, including risk assessment procedures.
  - Accident and sickness records for the past five years.
  - Records of previous Health and Safety Executive enforcement action.
  - Records of training and training policy.
  - The number and type of staff responsible for health and safety on this project with details of their qualifications and duties.
- Submit: With the Tender.

### 570 OUTLINE CONSTRUCTION PHASE HEALTH AND SAFETY PLAN

- Content: Submit the following information within one week of request:
  - Method statements on how risks from hazards identified in the pre-construction information and other hazards identified by the contractor will be addressed.
  - Details of the management structure and responsibilities.
  - Arrangements for issuing health and safety directions.
  - Procedures for informing other contractors and employees of health and safety hazards.
  - Selection procedures for ensuring competency of other contractors, the self-employed and designers.
  - Procedures for communications between the project team, other contractors and site operatives.
  - Arrangements for cooperation and coordination between contractors.
  - Procedures for carrying out risk assessment and for managing and controlling the risk.
  - Emergency procedures including those for fire prevention and escape.
  - Arrangements for ensuring that all accidents, illness and dangerous occurrences are recorded.
  - Arrangements for welfare facilities.
  - Procedures for ensuring that all persons on site have received relevant health and safety information and training.
  - Arrangements for consulting with and taking the views of people on site.
  - Arrangements for preparing site rules and drawing them to the attention of those affected and ensuring their compliance.
  - Monitoring procedures to ensure compliance with site rules, selection and management procedures, health and safety standards and statutory requirements.
  - Review procedures to obtain feedback.

### A31 PROVISION, CONTENT AND USE OF DOCUMENTS

### **DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS**

### 110 DEFINITIONS

• Meaning: Terms, derived terms and synonyms used in the preliminaries/ general conditions and specification are as stated therein or in the appropriate British Standard or British Standard glossary.

### 120 COMMUNICATION

- Definition: Includes advise, inform, submit, give notice, instruct, agree, confirm, seek or obtain information, consent or instructions, or make arrangements.
- Format: In writing to the person named in clause A10/140 unless specified otherwise.
- Response: Do not proceed until response has been received.

### 130 PRODUCTS

- Definition: Materials, both manufactured and naturally occurring, and goods, including components, equipment and accessories, intended for the permanent incorporation in the Works.
- Includes: Goods, plant, materials, site materials and things for incorporation into the Works.

#### 135 SITE EQUIPMENT

- Definition: Apparatus, appliances, machinery, vehicles or things of whatsoever nature required in or about the construction for the execution and completion of the Works but not materials or other things intended to form or forming part of the Permanent Works.
- Includes: Construction appliances, vehicles, consumables, tools, temporary works, scaffolding, cabins and other site facilities.
- Excludes: Products and equipment or anything intended to form or forming part of the permanent works.

#### 145 CONTRACTOR'S CHOICE

- Meaning: Selection delegated to the Contractor, but liability to remain with the specifier.
- 155 SUBMIT PROPOSALS
  - Meaning: Submit information in response to specified requirements.

### DOCUMENTS PROVIDED ON BEHALF OF THE EMPLOYER

- 460 THE SPECIFICATION
  - Coordination: All sections must be read in conjunction with Main Contract Preliminaries/ General conditions.

#### DOCUMENTS PROVIDED BY CONTRACTOR/ SUBCONTRACTORS/ SUPPLIERS

- 630 TECHNICAL LITERATURE
  - Information: Keep on site for reference by all supervisory personnel:
    - Manufacturers' current literature relating to all products to be used in the Works.
    - Relevant British, EN or ISO Standards.

#### 640 MAINTENANCE INSTRUCTIONS AND GUARANTEES

- Components and equipment: Obtain or retain copies, register with manufacturer and hand over on or before completion of the Works.
- Information location: In Building Manual.
- Emergency call out services: Provide telephone numbers for use after completion. Extent of cover: office hours only.

### **A32 MANAGEMENT OF THE WORKS**

### GENERALLY

### 110 SUPERVISION

- General: Accept responsibility for coordination, supervision and administration of the Works, including subcontracts.
- Coordination: Arrange and monitor a programme with each subcontractor, supplier, local authority and statutory undertaker, and obtain and supply information as necessary for coordination of the work.

### 120 INSURANCE

- Documentary evidence: Before starting work on site submit details, and/ or policies and receipts for the insurances required by the Conditions of Contract.
- 130 INSURANCE CLAIMS
  - Notice: If any event occurs which may give rise to any claim or proceeding in respect of loss or damage to the Works or injury or damage to persons or property arising out of the Works, immediately give notice to the Employer, the person named in clause A10/140 and the Insurers.
  - Failure to notify: Indemnify the Employer against any loss, which may be caused by failure to give such notice.

### PROGRAMME/ PROGRESS

- 245 START OF WORK ON SITE
  - Notice: Before the proposed date for start of work on site give minimum notice of one week.

### 290 NOTICE OF COMPLETION

- Requirement: Give notice of the anticipated dates of completion of the whole or parts of the Works.
- Associated works: Ensure necessary access, services and facilities are complete.
- Period of notice (minimum): one week.

### A33 QUALITY STANDARDS/ CONTROL

### STANDARDS OF PRODUCTS AND EXECUTIONS

### 110 INCOMPLETE DOCUMENTATION

- General: Where and to the extent that products or work are not fully documented, they are to be:
  - Of a kind and standard appropriate to the nature and character of that part of the Works where they will be used.
  - Suitable for the purposes stated or reasonably to be inferred from the project documents. Contract documents: Omissions or errors in description and/ or quantity shall not vitiate the Contract nor release the Contractor from any obligations or liabilities under the Contract.

- 120 WORKMANSHIP SKILLS
  - Operatives: Appropriately skilled and experienced for the type and quality of work.
  - Registration: With Construction Skills Certification Scheme.
  - Evidence: Operatives must produce evidence of skills/ qualifications when requested.
- 130 QUALITY OF PRODUCTS
  - Generally: New. (Proposals for recycled products may be considered).
  - Supply of each product: From the same source or manufacturer.
  - Whole quantity of each product required to complete the Works: Consistent kind, size, quality and overall appearance.
  - Tolerances: Where critical, measure a sufficient quantity to determine compliance.
  - Deterioration: Prevent. Order in suitable quantities to a programme and use in appropriate sequence.

#### 135 QUALITY OF EXECUTION

- Generally: Fix, apply, install or lay products securely, accurately, plumb, neatly and in alignment.
- Colour batching: Do not use different colour batches where they can be seen together.
- Dimensions: Check on-site dimensions.
- Finished work: Without defects, e.g. not damaged, disfigured, dirty, faulty, or out of tolerance.
- Location and fixing of products: Adjust joints open to view so they are even and regular.

### 150 INSPECTIONS

- Products and executions: Inspection or any other action must not be taken as approval unless confirmed in writing referring to:
  - Date of inspection.
  - Part of the work inspected.
  - Respects or characteristics which are approved.
  - Extent and purpose of the approval.
  - Any associated conditions.

### 170 MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS/ INSTRUCTIONS

- General: Comply with manufacturer's printed recommendations and instructions current on the date of the Invitation to tender.
- Changes to recommendations or instructions: Submit details.
- Ancillary products and accessories: Use those supplied or recommended by main product manufacturer.
- Agrément certified products: Comply with limitations, recommendations and requirements of relevant valid certificates.

#### 180A WATER FOR THE WORKS

• Mains supply: Clean and uncontaminated.

### 560 TESTS AND INSPECTIONS

- Timing: Agree and record dates and times of tests and inspections to enable all affected parties to be represented.
- Confirmation: One working day prior to each such test or inspection. If sample or test is not ready, agree a new date and time.
- Records: Submit a copy of test certificates and retain copies on site.

### WORK AT OR AFTER COMPLETION

- 710 WORK BEFORE COMPLETION
  - General: Make good all damage consequent upon the Works.
     Temporary markings, coverings and protective wrappings: Remove unless otherwise
     instructed.
  - Cleaning: Clean the Works thoroughly inside and out, including all accessible ducts and voids. Remove all splashes, deposits, efflorescence, rubbish and surplus materials.
  - Cleaning materials and methods: As recommended by manufacturers of products being cleaned, and must not damage or disfigure other materials or construction.
  - COSHH dated data sheets: Obtain for all materials used for cleaning and ensure they are used only as recommended by their manufacturers.
  - Minor faults: Touch up in newly painted work, carefully matching colour and brushing out edges. Repaint badly marked areas back to suitable breaks or junctions.
  - Moving parts of new work: Adjust, ease and lubricate as necessary to ensure easy and efficient operation, including doors, windows, drawers, ironmongery, appliances, valves and controls.

730 MAKING GOOD DEFECTS

- Remedial work: Arrange access with Contract Administrator.
- Rectification: Give reasonable notice for access to the various parts of the Works.
- Completion: Notify when remedial works have been completed.

### A34 SECURITY/ SAFETY/ PROTECTION

### SECURITY, HEALTH AND SAFETY

- 140 CONSTRUCTION PHASE HEALTH AND SAFETY PLAN
  - Submission: Present to the Employer/ Client no later than Not later than two weeks before commencement of work on site.
  - Confirmation: Do not start construction work until the Employer has confirmed in writing that the Construction Phase Health and Safety Plan includes the procedures and arrangements required by the CDM Regulations.
  - Content: Develop the plan from and draw on the Outline Construction Phase Health and Safety Plan, clause A30/570, and the Pre-tender Health and Safety Plan/ Preconstruction information.
- 150 SECURITY
  - Protection: Safeguard the site, the Works, products, materials, and any existing buildings affected by the Works from damage and theft.
  - Access: Take all reasonable precautions to prevent unauthorized access to the site, the Works and adjoining property.
  - Special requirements: Heras fencing surround to exercise area.

### PROTECT AGAINST THE FOLLOWING

- 340 POLLUTION
  - Prevention: Protect the site, the Works and the general environment including the atmosphere, land, streams and waterways against pollution.
  - Contamination: If pollution occurs inform immediately, including to the appropriate Authorities and provide relevant information.

### 360 NUISANCE

- Duty: Prevent nuisance from smoke, dust, rubbish, vermin and other causes.
- Surface water: Prevent hazardous build-up on site, in excavations and to surrounding areas and roads.

### 430 WASTE

- Includes: Rubbish, debris, spoil, surplus material, containers and packaging.
- General: Minimize production. Prevent accumulations. Keep the site and Works clean and tidy.
- Handling: Collect and store in suitable containers. Remove frequently and dispose off site in a safe and competent manner:
  - Non-hazardous material: In a manner approved by the Waste Regulation Authority.
  - Hazardous material: As directed by the Waste Regulation Authority and in accordance with relevant regulations.
- Recyclable material: Sort and dispose at a Materials Recycling Facility approved by the Waste Regulation Authority.
- Voids and cavities in the construction: Remove rubbish, dirt and residues before closing in.
- Waste transfer documentation: Retain on site.

### PROTECT THE FOLLOWING

### 510 EXISTING SERVICES

- Confirmation: Notify all service authorities, statutory undertakers and/ or adjacent owners of proposed works not less than one week before commencing site operations.
- Identification: Before starting work, check and mark positions of utilities/ services. Where
  positions are not shown on drawings obtain relevant details from service authorities,
  statutory undertakers or other owners.
- · Work adjacent to services:
  - Comply with service authority's/ statutory undertaker's recommendations.
  - Adequately protect, and prevent damage to services: Do not interfere with their operation without consent of service authorities/ statutory undertakers or other owners.
- Identifying services:
  - Below ground: Use signboards, giving type and depth;
  - Overhead: Use headroom markers.
- Damage to services: If any results from execution of the Works:
  - Immediately give notice and notify appropriate service authority/ statutory undertaker.
  - Make arrangements for the work to be made good without delay to the satisfaction of service authority/ statutory undertaker or other owner as appropriate.
  - Any measures taken to deal with an emergency will not affect the extent of the Contractor's liability.
- Marker tapes or protective covers: Replace, if disturbed during site operations, to service authority's/ statutory undertakers recommendations.

#### 520 ROADS AND FOOTPATHS

- Duty: Maintain roads and footpaths within and adjacent to the site and keep clear of mud and debris.
- Damage caused by site traffic or otherwise consequent upon the Works: Make good to the satisfaction of the Employer, Local Authority or other owner.

### 530 EXISTING TOPSOIL/ SUBSOIL

- Duty: Prevent over compaction of existing topsoil and subsoil in those areas which may be damaged by construction traffic, parking of vehicles, temporary site accommodation or storage of materials and which will require reinstatement prior to completion of the Works.
- Protection: Before starting work submit proposals for protective measures.

### 540 RETAINED TREES/ SHRUBS/ GRASSED AREAS

- Protection: Preserve and prevent damage, except those not required.
- Replacement: Mature trees and shrubs if uprooted, destroyed, or damaged beyond reasonable chance of survival in their original shape, as a consequence of the Contractor's negligence, must be replaced with those of a similar type and age at the Contractor's expense.

### 550 RETAINED TREES

- Protected area: Unless agreed otherwise do not:
  - Dump spoil or rubbish, excavate or disturb topsoil, park vehicles or plant, store materials or place temporary accommodation within an area which is the larger of the branch spread of the tree or an area with a radius of half the tree's height, measured from the trunk.
  - Sever roots exceeding 25 mm in diameter. If unintentionally severed give notice and seek advice.
  - Change level of ground within an area 3 m beyond branch spread.

### A37 OPERATION/ MAINTENANCE OF THE FINISHED WORKS

### GENERALLY

- 110A THE MANUAL
  - Responsibility: The Contractor
  - Content: Obtain and provide comprehensive information for owners and users of the completed Works. Include an overview of the main design principles and describe key components and systems within the finished Works, so affording a complete understanding of the Works, including all buildings and their systems to enable efficient and safe operation and maintenance.
  - Specific requirements: Provide full instructions for the use and maintenance and inspection of all equipment.
  - Format: Electronic and printed copy.
  - Number of copies: 2.
  - Delivery to: the client. by (date) at handover.

### 155A CONTENT OF THE MANUAL

- General: Details of the property, the parties, operational requirements and constraints of a general nature.
- Equipment: Design criteria, maintenance details, and product details. Description and operation of equipment, diagrammatic drawings, record drawings, identification of services, product details, equipment settings, maintenance schedules, consumable items, spares and emergency procedures.
- Documentation: Guarantees, warranties, maintenance agreements, test certificates and reports.